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DUNSTER HAVEN

The ‘natural’ course of the river Avill still feeds the Hawn, the former port of Dunster. Until 1488 or later the road at Marsh was described as the way to the seaport of Dunster
 at the haven, a large pool of river water probably penned in by shingle through which a channel of deeper water flowed out to sea. 

The Mohun's right of wreck at Dunster was recorded as early as 1181—2
 and the bailiff of Dunster owed over £5 to the king in 1182 for exporting corn.
 In 1279 John de Mohun received 9s 8d in tolls from the market and the port.
 In 1311 a ship sailing from Ireland to Wales was wrecked at Dunster and the cargo taken by 14 local men.
 In 1321 Robert le Vayre of Carhampton sailed back from Wales to Dunster harbour where he lay down and died of wretchedness and want. The same year a man drowned working on a conduit at the port when his hammer broke and stunned him.
 In 1332 pilgrims to Santiago, Spain, including a man from Cowbridge, Glamorgan, were drowned at Dunster.
 Ships’ awnings were taken in the port in 1377.
 In 1380 Lady Joan de Mohun was ordered to return the groceries, spices, dyestuff, paper, and saltpetre taken from a Catalan ship sailing from Genoa to Flanders and driven to Dunster in a storm.
 

Between 1297 and 1343 Dunster was listed among ports instructed not to allow anyone to go to sea without royal licence, to supply ships of 40 tons for the king’s use, forbid letters prejudicial to the king being brought in, and search for spies. In 1328 and 1338 Dunster and Bridgwater were the only Somerset ports ordered to recall all ships to port to defend against invasion and to proclaim protection for all merchants of Spain, Catalonia, Lombardy and Aquitaine.
 Dunster supplied a barge for the fleet in 1342
 and in 1375 the Saint Marie, a Dunster cog of 75 tons worth £275 including cargo, was taken by the French in Bourneuf Bay.
 In 1401 the ports of Mounts Bay, Cornwall, Ilfracombe, Devon, and Dunster were required to build and fit out a balinger or barge for the king.
 In 1403 Dunster was the port of embarkation to Carmarthen for 70 soldiers and archers from Somerset and Dorset whose sheriffs were to take boats for the passage.
 In 1350 Dunster shared with the north Devon ports a collector of subsidies on wool, hides and wine but by the 1390s Dunster was grouped with the Somerset ports of Bridgwater, Uphill and Axewater. Minehead was not included until 1406.
 
Although from that date Minehead replaced Dunster as a port, probably because the haven was becoming too shallow and the shingle bank was rising with changes to the coastline and tides,
 Dunster haven remained in use for heavy goods such as stone from Watchet c.1420, 10,000 stone slates from Cornwall in 1426 and coal for a limekiln in 1427.
 Fishermen at Marsh in the 1400s probably used the port.
 In 1565 Dunster haven was declared a place where small boats used to come in with salt, wine, victuals, wood and coal and was fit to be continued contradicting a report of 1559 that it was unfit.
 When millstones were needed in 1559 they were brought singly by waggon from Watchet.
 However, Dunster was shown as a port on Waghenaer’s map of 1589.
 
In 1633 century passengers from Ireland were said to come to Dunster because of the ‘pretty harbour’ at the mouth of the river
 and in 1648 and 1664 boats laden with coal came in and unloaded there.
 In the early 18th century stone and coal for the castle were still brought in this way, the haven’s banks were maintained, coal was shipped there in 1769 and in 1773 stone was brought to the Haven by punt.
 Dunster haven was shown on an 1856 sketch map of the coast but by this time it was virtually landlocked. In the 20th century, misnamed the Hawn, it formed an amenity freshwater lake in the Dunster Beach complex.
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